
BELLEVUE ARTS COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MINUTES 
 

March 11, 2008 Bellevue City Hall
4:00 p.m. Room 1E -109
 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chairperson Shepherd, Commissioners Donkin, Holder, 

Finley, Ptacek, Tremblay 
 
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: Commissioner Kiselev  
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Mary Pat Byrne, Tamar Benzikry-Stern, Department of 

Planning and Community Development 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: None 
 
RECORDING SECRETARY: Gerry Lindsay 
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:26 p.m. by Commissioner Tremblay who presided until 
the arrival of Chair Shepherd.  All Commissioners were present with the exception of Chair 
Shepherd, who arrived at 4:30 p.m., and Commissioner Kiselev, who was excused.   
 
 
II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND MINUTES 
 
 A. Approval of Agenda  
 
Motion to approve the agenda was made by Commissioner Donkin.  Second was 
by Commissioner Tremblay and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
 B. Approval of Minutes 
 
Motion to approve the February 12, 2008, minutes as submitted was made by 
Commissioner Donkin.  Second was by Commissioner Ptacek and the motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
III. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS – None 
 
IV. ACTION ITEMS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
 A. Funding Allocations 
  Review of Allocations Committee 2008 Recommendations 
 
Chair Shepherd provided an overview of the Allocations Committee’s Eastside Arts 
Partnership (EAP) recommendations which included two funding scenarios for the 
Commission to discuss as a whole.  She reminded the Commission that the Bellevue Arts 
Museum and KidsQuest made direct requests to the City Council for funding to which 
Council responded by allocating $2 million for operations to Bellevue Arts Museum and 
$500,000 to KidsQuest, $250,000 for their expansion project and the balance for 
operations.   



 
Chair Shepherd said the Allocations Committee discussed at length what impact this one-
time funding should have on operations funding the two groups receive annually from EAP 
and developed two possible scenarios.  In Scenario A neither group would be recommended 
for EAP funding in 2008.  In Scenario B funding to each group would be reduced for 2008.  
She said both organizations feeling compelled to seek direct funding from City Council 
highlights the fact that the signature arts organizations need more money than the EAP can 
currently provide.  That Council chose to fund both requests seems to indicate they also see 
the need.   
 
Chair Shepherd suggested that, in light of the large allocation each organization has already 
received from Council for operations this year, neither organization should receive funds 
this year from EAP program. She also noted that requests from two new groups were 
received, creating even greater demand on the funds available from EAP.  
 
The Commissioners were informed that each application received was evaluated according 
to fiscal and managerial excellence, collaboration, accessibility, outreach, and diversity of 
art form.   
 
Arts Specialist Mary Pat Byrne explained that one of the aims of providing operating  
support is creating predictability in funding which allows groups to better plan and manage 
their resources.  Funders providing operating funds generally try not to alter the funding 
levels significantly year-to-year unless the amount of funding available is reduced; the pool 
of available funding has increased and the organizations can be given more; or something 
changes significantly for the worse for an organization in which case the organization would 
receive less or be de-funded altogether. 
 
Commissioner Tremblay agreed with Chair Shepherd that City Council allocating additional 
funds to two organizations demonstrates the need for additional funding.  It will be 
necessary, however, to explain in some detail to City Council and others why the decision to 
reduce their funding was made.   
 
Commissioner Ptacek suggested providing City Council with similar options, recommending 
the modified funding level and acknowledging at the same time that Council may prefer not 
to give the groups funding in addition to what they’ve already received. The Council should 
also be told what the Commission would do with the funds if they were not allocated to 
Bellevue Arts Museum and Kids Quest.   
 
Commissioners discussed the pros and cons of this approach.  Commissioner Tremblay 
suggested that if the Commission is going to seek additional funds it should not be in 
conjunction with an allocation to those two organizations.  Commissioner Ptacek concurred 
and said his proposal would serve to inculcate in the Council’s thinking that more funding is 
needed without tying it to any specific organization.   
 
Commissioner Holder pointed out that when the Bellevue Arts Museum and KidsQuest are 
folded back into the mix, the smaller organizations will would lose out, unless there is more 
money to allocate by then.   
 
Commissioner Tremblay said some of the smaller groups that are trying to gain a foothold 
have a vibrancy and grittiness to them and that they need to be supported in a way the 
more established arts organizations do not need.  She said she would like to see the 
Commission support more diversity.   
 



Commissioner Holder suggested that the Commission does support diversity, primarily in 
allocating funds for special projects.  She said all of the organizations are struggling to 
some extent, with the exception of the big hitters.  Every dollar given to them is helpful.   
 
Chair Shepherd said she is sensitive to establishing expectations by giving organizations 
increases in their allocations.  She added, however, that future expectations can be 
curtailed by including a clear statement outlining that the increased funding is a one-time 
allocation only.  The $2500 earmarked for Kids Quest is only 0.3 percent of their budget 
and one percent of the operational funding they received directly from the City Council, but 
to another group that amount of funding could make a big difference.  She said if the 
Commission chooses to go with the red column, it should include the proposal made by 
Commissioner Ptacek.   
 
Commissioner Donkin asked why the proposal does not include as much funding for 
Bellevue Opera as was allocated in 2007.  Chair Shepherd explained that the organization 
asked for less money.   
 
Commissioner Donkin asked if the money that would be allocated to the Bellevue Arts 
Museum could be moved over into the special projects column.  Ms. Byrne said that could 
be done.  Commissioner Donkin said that would take away the issue of one-time funding 
because all special projects allocations are for one-time events.   
 
Motion to recommend Scenario B was made by Commissioner Holder.  Second 
was by Commissioner Ptacek.   
 
Commissioner Finley noted that the Commission wrestled with this issue during the last 
allocation cycle.  At that time the Council had decided to allocate money to the Bellevue 
Arts Museum and Kids Quest, but the funds had not yet been transferred.  She agreed the 
point should be made that more money for arts organizations is needed; the requests taken 
together total $159,000, but there is only $88,000 available to allocate.   
 
Commissioner Tremblay agreed that the point needs to be made, but suggested that if 
there is a controversy the point may be lost.   
 
Chair Shepherd clarified that, if the motion carried, the transmittal memo to the Council 
would include the scenario outlined by Commissioner Ptacek.   
 
The motion carried 5-2, with Commissioners Donkin, Holder, Ptacek and 
Tremblay voting yes, and Chairperson Shepherd and Commissioner Finley voting 
no.  
 
Turning to the allocations recommendation for special projects, Chair Shepherd explained 
that there is $34,000 available including $22,000 in City funds and about $12,000 
anticipated in 4Culture funds.  She said the allocations committee determined that three of 
the applications should not be funded, and noted that a fourth application cannot be funded 
because it does not meet the guidelines.   
 
Chair Shepherd provided an overview of the committees recommendations regarding the 
various Special Projects applicants. 
 
Motion to endorse the recommendations of the allocations committee for 2008 
was made by Commissioner Finley.  Second was by Commissioner Holder and the 
motion carried unanimously. 
 



 B. Budget Planning 
 
Chair Shepherd said she attended a session at the Americans for the Arts conference that 
was offered by a staff member for Los Angeles County.  Much of the information offered 
was illuminating and provided a helpful perspective in light of Bellevue’s upcoming budget 
cycle.  She noted that the Commission was successful in getting an increase in the CIP 
allocation in the last budget cycle, but not in the allocation for programs.   
 
Commissioners discussed possible talking points for a budget request to City Council.   
 
It was agreed that Chair Shepherd will put together discussion points, Ms. Byrne will 
forward them to the Commissioners who will email their comments and ideas back to Ms. 
Byrne.  Ms. Byrne, will then collate all the responses and provide them to the Commission 
for the next regular meeting’s budget discussion.  
 
V. COMMISSION QUICK BUSINESS – None 
 
VI. REPORTS 
 
 A. Commissioner Reports 
 
  1. Bel-Red: Report to Planning Commission  
 
Chair Shepherd reported that the chairs of the various boards and commissions working on 
the Bel-Red subarea plan attended a recent Planning Commission meeting to present their 
recommendations for Bel-Red Subarea Plan policies.  Following Chair Shepherd’s 
presentation, one of the Planning Commissioners pointed out an inconsistency in the 
policies.  While land use policies restrict new industrial uses in the area, arts policies allow 
for artist studios and live/work spaces that could include industrial uses.  Not wishing to 
restrict those arts uses, the planning commissioner asked that staff revise the language so 
that the arts uses would be allowed.    
 
Commissioner Ptacek noted that there is an artist live/work space near Rainier Avenue in 
Seattle.  He suggested a tour of the facility should be arranged for the Commission.   
 
Chair Shepherd said the chair of the Planning Commission asked how the City would go 
about bringing an anchor arts education institution to the Bel-Red corridor as described in 
one of the draft policies.  She said she explained that it was demographics that drew Pacific 
Northwest Ballet to the corridor and that they have been very successful there.  Drawing 
others would likely be a matter of making a similar case to other institutions. 
 
  2. Meydenbauer Bay Access 
 
Commissioner Finley said the steering committee has not met for quite some time so there 
is nothing new to report.  She briefly reviewed what the steering committee has talked 
about to date and their vision for the park and surrounding development.   
 
  3.  Bellevue Sculpture Exhibition  
 
Public Art Project Coordinator Tamara Benzikry-Stern reported that the jury reviewed 262 
entries from 122 artists.  They narrowed the list to 67 prioritized and alternate works.  Since 
then there have been two risk assessment meetings.  The goal is to have the final 
selections made by the end of the week.   
 



Ms. Benzikry-Stern said the teen project is moving along smoothly as well.  The Bellevue 
Schools Foundation awarded one of its teachers $975 dollars which will be used for 
materials used by the four Bellevue School District teachers and towards the GPS devices 
for the schools.  There have been meetings with Seth! [sic] Leary who will serve as the 
technologist in residence and as liaison and coordinator for the teachers.   
 
Commissioner Tremblay reported that a teen project involving geocaching will take place 
through the Frye Art Museum at the same time.  She suggested that there might be some 
cooperative promotional opportunities.   
 
Ms. Benzikry-Stern said she has also met with Jason Moodie who served as the teaching 
artist for the 2006 teen project.  He will be working again with the Ground Zero teens.   
 
 4. Sculpture Healing Garden 
 
Chair Shepherd reported that she met the president and CEO of Overlake Hospital at an 
event and took the opportunity to discuss with him the Commission’s current thinking on 
the project, that the long-term loan of Giga Now  will be the only participation of the Arts 
Program for the time being.  She said his response was that he understands and agrees 
with the concerns, though he suggested the site might look much different once the 
earthmoving and construction equipment is taken away.  He said the internal garden space 
has evolved into more of what the Commission had in mind for the gateway area originally 
and suggested the Commission may want to take a look at that space.   
 
 B. Joint Staff and Commission Reports – None 
 
 C. Staff Reports and Updates 
 
Ms. Byrne commented on various projects included in the Project Status report in the 
meeting packet.  With regard to the pond for The Root, Ms. Byrne reported that the City is 
now waiting for the insurance company to issue the bond and insurance certificate so the 
contractor can do begin work.   
 
Ms. Byrne shared with the Commissioners the latest fabrication pictures from the 140th 
Avenue art project.   
 
 
VII. INFORMATION AND UPCOMING EVENTS 
 
 A. Written Correspondence 
 
  1. David Plummer Regarding Bel-Red Subarea Plan Draft 
 
 B. For Your Information – As Noted 
 
  1. Corrected Minutes from February 12, 2008 Special Meeting 
  2. Calendar 
  3. Upcoming Agenda Items 
   
 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chair Shepherd adjourned the meeting at 6:06 p.m. 


